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BEFORE THE ZONING HEARING BOARD
OF SPRING GROVE BOROUGH

IN RE:

ZHB CASE NO. 02-2025: APPLICATION BY PAUL AND
NICOLE MITCHELL, 420 MONOCACY TRAIL, SPRING GROVE,
PA 17362. THE APPLICANT IS REQUESTING A VARIANCE
OF SECTION 400 ATTACHMENT 3 TO ALLOW FOR THE
APPROVAL OF A COMMERCIAL BUSINESS RENTING HER POOL
TO THE PUBLIC. THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED AT 420
MONOCACY TRAIL, SPRING GROVE, PA 17362 IN THE
LOW-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT.

BEFORE :  KRISTYN STOUCH, CHAIRPERSON
JARROD MARTIN, MEMBER
JOSH MOORE, MEMBER
BETH KERN, ESQUIRE, SOLICITOR
DANIELLE ROBISON, ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

REPORTED BY : GAIL D. MCLUCAS, NOTARY PUBLIC
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL REPORTER

DATE : SEPTEMBER 18, 2025; 6:00 P.M.

PLACE :  SPRING GROVE BOROUGH OFFICES
1 CAMPUS AVENUE
SPRING GROVE, PA 17362
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MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: 1I'd like to call
this Zoning Hearing Board Meeting to order, please.
Would everyone stand for a moment of silence for the
fallen police officers and Pledge of Allegiance.

(Moment of silence for the recently

fallen police officers and Pledge of Allegiance.)

MS. BETH KERN: Roll call of the Board
members present this evening. So you just want to state
each Board member's name and if you're here, indicate
"here" or "present."

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: I can do roll call
if you want. Kristyn Stouch.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Here.

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: Joshua Moore.

MR. JOSHUA MOORE: Here.

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: Jarrod Martin.

MR. JARROD MARTIN: Here.

MS. BETH KERN: So the next item that's
listed is public comment and visitors. Because this is
a zZoning Hearing Board hearing, typically public comment
or comments are reserved until after the applicant for
the case that the Board is hearing this evening has an
opportunity to present their application to the board as
well as any testimony and witnesses that they brought

here this evening on their behalf, anyone who's here
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from the public that would like to ask questions or make
comments will be allowed to do so before the Zoning
Hearing Board would render its decision.

Additionally because this is a Zoning
Hearing Board Hearing, this is quasi-judicial hearing.
The Board is here to hear the application and make a
decision. That means that this is a formal hearing
where we have a stenographer present who will be taking
the record this evening, which is why it's important
that only one person who would like to speak is speaking
at a time. It's difficult for the stenographer to take
down the record if more than one person is talking at
one time.

So we're going to ask that you be mindful
of that and in the event that we start to have a
problem, we will need to call for order and ask people
to stop and to cease any comment and to allow the person
who had been recognized to have the floor to continue
speaking.

Additionally, when we do get to the
public comment time period, we are going to, based on
the amount of folks who are here this evening, intend to
limit comments to five minutes. But we do want to allow
everyone a fair and equal opportunity to be heard.

However, if comments start to become repetitive or
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abusive in nature, we will ask that you end your comment
and sit down.

There's a difference between public
comment and testimony. If anyone is here tonight and
wants to provide any testimony, which would be sharing
facts with the Board for their consideration relative to
this application or to present any evidence through
testimony, through spoken testimony or other evidence to
object to the application, that will be treated
differently than public comment and the Board will ask
if you're here to present testimony as well.

So I just wanted to lay out some of those
procedural ground rules and make sure that everyone
understands why we're here and how we will be conducting
this hearing this evening.

Just for clarification, my name is Beth
Kern. I'm an attorney with the CGA law firm. The
purpose for my attendance this evening is I serve as the
solicitor to the Zoning Hearing Board. That means that
I assist them with legal questions relative to the
application and the case that they are hearing tonight
and to address any questions about procedure that might
happen during the course of the hearing.

So with that said, I think it's time to

call the case. If you would like to just read the first
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item under new business and announce that case then
we'll get started with the applicant.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: The case number that
we're going to be processing tonight is ZHB 02-2025, 420
Monocacy Trail in Spring Grove 17362 and it's Paul and
Nicole Mitchell to be considered for a variance to allow
a commercial business in the Low Density Residential
Zoning District. The business consists of a homeowner
renting her pool to the public on Swimply.com.

MS. BETH KERN: 1Is the Applicant here
this evening?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, that's me.

MS. BETH KERN: So, the Applicant and
anyone who's providing testimony, we're going to need to
swear you in. So I think it would be efficient, is
there anyone who is here who intends to present any
testimony this evening beyond the Applicant or do you
have any witnesses with you tonight beyond yourself?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: I don't have any
witnesses. 1It's just myself. My husband is, that's in
my variance request that I had prepared for you guys,
and I'm very nervous and I just want to at least try.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. Is there anyone
else who's present here who knows at this point in time

that they desire to make any testimony after the
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Applicant presents their application and testimony?

Okay. We'll proceed with swearing you in.

NICOLE MITCHELL, was duly sworn and

testified as follows:

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So what I prepared
is just basically --

MS. BETH KERN: Oh, sorry. Could you
please just state your name and your address, even
though it was in the case, for the benefit of the
stenographer, please.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. My name is
Nicole Hunt Mitchell and formerly Nicole Hunt Brooks.
Members of the Board. Thank you for the privilege of
allowing me to present my case today. I appear before
you not only as an Applicant, but as a committed member
to this community dedicated to preserving its integrity
and future.

As you review my application for a
variance, I want to emphasize my commitment to upholding
our community standards while maintaining the unique
character of the neighborhood as a vision by local
regulations. On a personal note, my husband who was the

primary breadwinner of our family, suffered a near death
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experience last November and has been in a semicomatose
state since. 1It's one of the reasons that I came up
with the idea because when I got my school tax, a $6,000
school tax, I'm able to pay my bills, but those taxes
were a huge hardship for me and I chose not to put my
personal information on my original application because
I wanted only the people at the hearing to know that
truth about what's going on in my personal life and it's
the main reason.

So the potential income generated from
this seasonal pool rental -- and that's what it is,
seasonal, it's not something that would go year around
or anything like that -- would help make up for the
significant financial shortfall we now face as my owner
has never been substantial.

I respectfully request a variance for a
proposed business, Turquoise Oasis. The seasonal
business would provide the necessary income to help us
afford the astronomical school taxes -- and I know I'm
being repetitive, but it's easier to read what I have
written -- that have become a hardship while also
contributing additional business tax revenue to the
Borough.

Our goal is to establish a community

recreation area that not only operates on an individual
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hourly reservation basis, it offers flexibility and
accessibility for local residents seeking a private and
safe space for recreation. The cost of swimming in a
public pool is higher per person than our hourly fee for
small groups. We also envision partnering with the
neighboring summer camps, daycares and the library
enabling local children to enjoy safe, private activity
close to home without having to swim with strangers.
Since our property is within walking
distance of the local daycare and library,
transportation needs are eliminated. The property is
ideally located for private events for kids and family
gathering. It is bordered by commercial properties on
two sides. So to the left and the back of me is
commercial. So it does make my property just a little
different from everyone else's because not only do I
back to the shopping center, I'm the only house on my
block that doesn't have a tree buffer. So you're able
to see from my back yard all the way to 116 and the
noise that I experience from the car wash, no one else
experiences it, but I know for a fact that the way that
my yard is situated, it's on an incline. And so even if
you look in my yard from the front, you can only see
like the top of the gazebo back there. And I also have,

like, blasted music just to see what others would hear.
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I go to the front of my house, from the front of my
house I can't even hear the music.

And so that's one of the things that I
know that I would not be a public nuisance and the only
thing, the knowledge of me having that pool rental would
be the only complaint that I could imagine. The only
times that I have rented my pool, so I did inform my
nearest neighbor, he owns a business to the left of me,
what my intentions were. I told him that I was going to
try Swimply out and then after a month if I did get a
lot of people requesting reservations, then I would go
and come here and would apply for a permit.

When I first did my research for an
outdoor recreational facility in the Borough of Spring
Grove, it said that there was such a thing. What I
didn't realize at the time is that our particular area
did not allow it but Spring Grove did. There were two,
from what Danielle presented to me, two areas in Spring
Grove do allow that type of business, but two don't.

And the thing that makes me a little
different is the fact that I am surrounded by commercial
on two sides. 1I'm not deep into the neighborhood and so
on and so forth.

And so as I said, the back yard sits on a

downhill incline ensuring privacy from the front of the
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house and minimizing sound transmission. Behind my
yard, behind my back yard is a 24-hour car wash. There
are times where 2:00 o'clock in the morning loud music,
fights, arguments in the parking lot right behind my
house, I experience that at a greater rate than anyone
else. The only other person who experiences that is the
business on the side of me and he always comments.

I've actually included a character
reference from him. He was not able to be here today
because he's taking his daughter to college. He has
college week on the West Coast for her, and so that is
in the packet that I prepared for you. So within that
packet is the business plan, how I would plan to operate
and the fact that Swimply.com does provide liability
insurance. It provides a safe vetting process. And so
because I plan to market to our community, there
wouldn't be an outside negative element.

So most of the time that my pool was used
this summer was my own personal friends. But that's
because I opened up the calendar when I first created my
Swimply site and my friends who wanted to swim, I said,
I'll tell you what, go on there and sign up and do it
like that.

So I did talk to one of my neighbors

right before I came to apply for my permit because once
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they started filling my algorithms, because I'd say,
give me five-star reviews and then I'll see it. So I
started getting a lot of inquiries about using the pool,
couples and everything. So there was one lady that I
did rent to that was not a personal friend. She
actually owns the seafood place that just got bought on
30 and she really enjoyed her time at my pool.

And so that's what I found from Swimply
is that most of the inquiries are not from large groups
or gatherings, it's for people who may be embarrassed of
their bodies and want to swim but don't want to do it in
a public setting and things like that. So I've never
had an inquiry for more than eight people the whole
time. Anything that I did on weekends was for my own
parties. So I know that I'm allowed to do that.

Anyway, so one of the things, too, is
that what I have put on Swimply concerning added
traffic, I work in the shopping center behind there. I
don't know if you're aware of that. I'm a realtor and
my broker is the Re/Max First Class. So I have a
relationship with that shopping center. And my boss, he
said that if I wanted to park my cars over there to free
up my spaces I could. I just put that on there because
what I wanted to do is make sure that if I did rent my

pool, my guests would know you can't park anywhere but
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in front of my house.

And so I have a four-car driveway. And
the sides of my house, I have pictures, and I couldn't
download them to show you guys exactly what my property,
how it situates in the neighborhood and how it is not
part of the deeper part of the neighbor. 1I'm more part
of the shopping center than I am the neighborhood
because my whole back yard is open and why I don't have
tree buffer, I'm not sure.

And so concerning added traffic, parking
would be limited to our four-car driveway with four to
five additional spaces on the front of our property.
Guests would be instructed not to park in front of the
neighbors' houses.

This unique location minimizes any
potential impact on neighboring residences making the
operation of Turquoise Oasis virtually unobtrusive to
the community. By leveraging these site advantages, we
aim to provide a valuable amenity that enhances the
neighborhood quality of 1life and important memories.

Our pool was originally built as an
investment for our family to enjoy, love, family time
and peace rather than financial gain. Because of this
sudden change in my life, it's one of the reasons that I

even started looking into other ways to bring income in
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because when I got that $6,000 tax bill, it kind of
freaked me out, because the only income I have coming in
with the loss of my husband's is enough to pay our
mortgage and to pay our utilities, pay car notes and
things like that. And, so, I was trying to think of
another way because right now, I don't know if you
realize with the economy, houses aren't selling. It's
only, the only people who really are being successful,
like my boss he does because he's been doing it 28
years. And so it's hard to make money that way. So I
have been working from home and it's just not enough to
afford this. I was able to make first payment on my
taxes and I'm just really stressed out about that. But
that's nobody's problem but my own.

And so we seek to share the benefits of
the joy, family time and peace with other families in
our community. We will collaborate with Swimply.com, a
platform that is similar to Airbnb, to ensure that there
is vetting of the guests and provide liability
insurance, calendar and scheduling technology, secure
banking and text documentation.

Swimply's platform guarantees a
well-insured safe environment offering the community a
healthy, private hygienic and personal summertime

retreat.
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When I first discovered Swimply, I
created my page with limited openings on the calendar
and notified the business owner to the left of my
property about my intentions. Initially I used a
platform to allow friends -- and I'm just reading
because I know I said these things from memory, but in
order to stay on point, I need to stay on point -- and
when I reached out to my neighbor to discuss the fact
that I was planning on doing this, it wasn't met with
anger or anything. So I really was like, you know
something, I'm going to pay the money and do this. That
was my goal.

So I have made every effort to align this
proposal with local zoning laws. That's why I'm here
today, provide safe recreational options for Spring
Grove families, and also balance our personal investment
in that pool.

By partnering with a reputable platform,
we will utilize technology and establish best practices
to deliver a seamless booking experience ensuring peace
of mind for both guests, hosts and neighbors. This
approach reduces administrative burdens, promotes
efficiency and security and it ensures transparency
throughout the reservation process.

My proposal does not and will not create
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a public nuisance under applicable municipality codes or
state law. Nothing in my plan infringes on my
neighbors' rights of their enjoyment of their
properties. There will be no encroachment nor any
adverse, effects on the health, safety or welfare of the
community resulting from granting this variance. 1In
fact, this proposal is likely to have a positive effect
on property values throughout the area.

Turquoise Oasis is established to create
lasting memories, strengthen neighborhood bonds and
foster a culture of relaxation, enjoyment within the
community. The vision is to build a welcoming local
retreat that serves the needs of a lot of different
families.

In conclusion, I ask the Board to
consider not only the strengths of my proposal, but also
the positive impact that we could possibly have on our
community by providing a safe, well-managed family
friendly recreation space. We can promote joy,
connection and well-being among our neighbors. I am
committed to maintaining the highest standards in
ensuring that this initiative aligns with local
regulations and the values of Spring Grove.

Thank you for the opportunity to present

my case and I respectfully request your approval of my
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variance application. Thank you.

MS. BETH KERN: If I could, I think it
would be helpful if I'd ask you some questions that will
help the Board relative to variance criteria, as well as
the specific criteria for the outdoor recreation use
that you've applied for and the subsequent swimming pool
use that is related to that as it's outlined in the
Borough's Zoning Ordinance. Okay?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Okay.

MS. BETH KERN: And I just want to also,
for the record, you indicated a packet that you provided
to the board members.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: I have a copy for
you as well.

MS. BETH KERN: Oh, thank you, vyes.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: She told me it was
only three. So I actually, I put a lot of packets
together for my neighbors and everyone so they could get
a better understanding that this would not be a
year-around business. It is seasonal and it is geared
towards the fact that a lot of people don't have access
to pools in our neighborhood. So this is --

MS. BETH KERN: Would you like to
formally submit this to the Board as part of your

application as an exhibit to the hearing this evening?



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

18

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

(Applicant Deposition Exhibit 1 marked

for identification)

MS. BETH KERN: So, if I could then, I'm
just going to have a few questions here. You mentioned
that the use would be seasonal in nature.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: Can you better describe
for the Board what, when you say seasonal, what months
each year do you intend you would begin the use and what
month each year do you intend to cease the use under
this seasonal time period?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So, the one thing
that I've noticed is that we have been having Indian
summer quite often. And so most pools, most public
pools they close at Labor Day, but I wanted to keep mine
open until October because my pool is heated and it is a
salt water, it has a salt water chlorinator. So I would
open in May, close at the end of September, maybe the
middle of October, depending on weather. And it's just
that simple, that the way the calendar works, I can
close it at any point, so on and so forth. And I would
just schedule my pool's closing based on what the
business would run.

MS. BETH KERN: But you envision based on
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weather conditions dependent from year to year that you
would close your pool by mid October and you wouldn't be
necessarily looking to open the pool earlier than the
beginning of May?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: All right. You talked a
little bit about the condition of your property and that
it's near the commercial shopping center. If you
wouldn't mind approaching, I have an aerial photograph
here that I printed out. 1Is this your property that's
in the white 1line there?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Where's the
shopping center? Here's the shopping center. So, yes,
I'm second from the corner, so this is a business and so
he is the only one that would really be affected by
anything on here and I do have a letter from him because
I did inform him everything that was going on.

And so this is the shopping center. So
right there, that's the car wash. So when people are
here, they're here, they're here and there's no tree
buffer here for me. So my house opens all the way to
116. Everybody else has a tree buffer. So I feel like
I'm part of the business because of how much noise I
experience because people wash their cars at the

darndest times.
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MS. BETH KERN: Okay. So when we're
looking at this, you reference the tree buffer that goes
behind this property that's on one side of you and then
there's another property on the other side of you and at
the rear lot lines there's tree buffers. The trees here
in this corner, do they provide you any buffering?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Not really because
if you really see it from the yard, I had a picture so
you could really see. So what you're seeing is just
kind of 1like the top of the tree. So at the bottom of
the tree, it's open. 1It's like you can see through. So
while it looks 1like that, it's open from basically this
whole part here, I can see from -- let's see, where is
my gazebo -- so from here to here is open.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: And the way it is
is because the tree leaves are at the top.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. This report, it
comes from the county map. It indicates that your
property size is .321 acres. Do you believe that to be
accurate?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: I felt like it was
bigger because I would have sworn it was bigger than
that. But if that's what it says, I believe it because

when we got our permits to put the pool in, I would have
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sworn that it was a much larger size.

MS. BETH KERN: What's your recollection
of how many acres your property is?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Three quarters.

MS. BETH KERN: Three quarters. But less
than an acre?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Um-hum.

MS. BETH KERN: Where, for the benefit of
the Board, and you can kind of take the map down, can
you point or indicate in what corner your -- it doesn't
look like it's visible -- but where is the pool located
on your property?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: TIt's here
(Indicating).

MS. BETH KERN: Show each member, please.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So this is the
business. And then they have trees and then my fence,
the way my yard is, I have a 6-foot fence. And so
looking from the front of my house because I'm on an
incline, the thing you can really see in my yard is like
my gazebo, but I'm open all the way to the shopping
center all the way to 116. Everybody has a thick tree
buffer. Mine is open through here. And the pool is
here. And this family here, they travel most of the

summer. They do camping and so they are rarely home. I
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was hoping to have the conversation, but I was kind of
overwhelmed with everything that has happened since I've
decided to file for this.

MS. BETH KERN: So there is a residence
on the other side of you?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, it is. And so
my property has two businesses on the far back and then
the left side in the front of the house. And then, of
course, this family here.

MS. BETH KERN: What type of business is
located on the left side of you?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: And so that's one
of the things that I wanted to also get my variance for
is that I wanted to collaborate with him. So what he
does, he does physical therapy for, he does sports
medicine and so we had discussed that once I did get
everything, if I was able to get my variance and do
legalities he wanted to use, because I have a jacuzzi on
the pool, and he wanted to use that for hydrotherapy and
work it with his patients that way. So he was going to
be one of the ones who would be interested in renting,
you know, some hours for his own personal patients.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. I recognize you
may not have measured, but how far would you say that

the edge, the very edge of your pool is to your existing
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house?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: To my house or the
house next door?

MS. BETH KERN: To your house.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: When you say the
edge, are you talking -- okay, so, I wish I was able to
get the pictures up.

MS. BETH KERN: So here's another picture
that I have that shows the pool, right? Is that an
accurate representation?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Um-hum. So I'm
pretty sure that it's 12 feet from the fence to the edge
of the pool, because in order to have our permit, 1like
the permit process when you have a pool done is very
stringent. They count for everything, all the way from
when they first bring you the design, they came out to
measure before any dirt was even scooped out to make
sure that I was complaint because there were a couple
things that I didn't know offhand is that we had to be
10 feet away from the edge of the, from the fence line,
but we actually did 12.

MS. BETH KERN: So that's from the side
yard?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Um-hum from the

fence.
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MS. BETH KERN: And do you have any idea
about what the measurement might be from where this edge
of the pool here is to where the back of your house?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So from here, so
there's, that's the gate here and it swings out. So
from this part of the pool to the gate is at least
15 feet. It might be 17 because we did have to -- so
when they first drew it, I felt that it was too close to
that gate. So I had them move it back. So it's
somewhere between 15 and 17.

MS. BETH KERN: Fifteen and 17, okay.
And I think you told the Board earlier you do have a
fence. 1Is it around the entire back yard?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. And the
front, too. So from where my house sits, and I don't
know if you can really see it, you can kind of see it
here. So that's my fence right there, right, and so
this is where the pool equipment is over here and so
that's the neighbor's house. That is the shed that was
on the property when we first bought it. This is the
deck, the porch, and right here, so the fence goes here
and then here. So we have a vinyl fence on this part,
but there was a wood fence when we first bought the
house so when we put that fence in, we decided to go

with vinyl because that back fence was in bad shape and
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we didn't want to have to go through maintaining that.

MS. BETH KERN: So is the fence along the
rear lot line, is that the vinyl fence now, too?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: TIt's a wood fence.
So the vinyl fence, it has a small lattice top around it
and -- but the back fence is all wood.

MS. BETH KERN: And how tall is the
fence?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: TIt's six feet.

MS. BETH KERN: Around all areas?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. But the thing
about it, though, the pool, the way the yard sits, even
though it's a 6-foot high fence, it's almost 1like
because the front of my yard is on a hill. And so it
seems taller.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. And you talked
about getting the permit for the pool. So is it
accurate that you and your husband had the pool
installed after you bought the property?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: When did you buy the
property?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: June 16th, 2020.

MS. BETH KERN: And how long after did

you install the pool?
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MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: We just installed
it last year. It was completed August 2024. We put the
fence in, I believe that was 2022.

MS. BETH KERN: And when you came to the
Borough and got the permit to install the pool, was 1it,
am I accurate that it was intended at that time just to
be for your own family's recreational needs?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: It really was.

That was our full intention. We had no intention of
sharing it with anyone because we wanted our family to
be there. But it was mostly for my husband's kids and
grandkids, but they live far away and without him being
there, you know, they don't come. And right now he's in
a facility called Tremont. He's not responsive and I do
have pictures of him being lifted so that he can be
showered and stuff like that so people could really
understand how serious it is. Because if he weren't in
that condition, I'd have him home.

MS. BETH KERN: Do you have any, in the
back yard, do you have any outside lights put up that
would kind of, that the path of the light would extend
over onto either of the adjoining neighbors or out into
the street or back into the parking -- is it a parking
of the commercial area?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: No, actually. So
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what I have underneath my gazebo I have lights and so it
kind of illuminates the yard. But everything else are
solar lights that are actually the fence itself and then
I have some dish lights around the pool. I do have one
work light that when I do need light back there, I can
turn it on and it illuminates towards -- let me show you
the back corner. I'm so like turned around. Where's --
it's hard to see without my pool there.

MS. BETH KERN: So the pool, you've
indicated that the pool is here in this lower corner.
I'm going to say lower for the purpose of --

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. Anyway so it
would illuminate this corner, which is a lot of trees in
that corner.

MS. BETH KERN: And does the light point
out towards the property lines or does it point in
towards your pool?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: 1It's a portable
light. So it just would depend on where I put it. I
don't have an installed light, if that's what you're
asking. The only 1light that I have there is the light
that is, when you come off of my porch, I have a
screened porch, and these lights, both of those were
there when we bought the house and there's a light

there. And it wouldn't illuminate too much of anything.
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It is a motion light.

MS. BETH KERN: So those are like
traditional residential back yard lights?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: Nothing industrial, heavy
duty?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: No.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. What kind of plan
do you have for any kind of drainage or the annual
maintenance of the pool?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Okay. So our vyard,
from what we understood, our yard is the yard that water
from both houses comes because we have a drain system in
our yard. So if you were to come back there you'd see
where the storm water, it goes straight into there.

So actually, the interesting thing is
that since we put the pool in and the elevation raised a
little bit because it used to be like a bowl, since the
pool has gone in, I don't get the standing water nor
does my neighbor. Because it used to come and it would
puddle like a pond. But now it just drains better. I
don't know if it's more absorption with the yard. I'm
not sure. But it made it better for us when the pool
went 1in.

MS. BETH KERN: How about your plan for,
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do you have it maintenanced and drained and water added?
What's your closing and opening process?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So the process with
the closing because of the type of chlorinator that we
have on it, the only thing that needs to be done is we
have to drain out about this much water to be below the
filters and then the drain, and it's covered, and all of
the filters. So I did have pictures of like our
equipment and so we have huge filters. We have a filter
that only needs to be cleaned once a year. It's huge.
And we have the other filters. So we have the skimmer,
we have the filters and so the jacuzzi itself has its
own filters as well. And so the closing process is they
come out, they clean all the filters, remove them. I
store them for the winter and then they put the cover
on.

MS. BETH KERN: And for the benefit of
the record, when you referenced this much earlier, would
you say it's fair that you indicated a size that's
somewhere between 18 to 24 inches of water that's being
removed?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. And the pool
on one end is three feet and on the deep end because
there's a bolder under our pool, we weren't able to do a

full six feet. So this side of the pool, it goes about
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six-three and then six-eight. And then on the other
side it only goes five-four. And then in that area
there's seating, there's huge steps and then we had
something installed called a swimming ledge. And what
it does is it provides a safe place, like if a child is
struggling, if they get to the ledge they can hold on it
and get themselves out of there. We did that because we
have grandkids.

MS. BETH KERN: So just for clarity, the
pool has varying depths of the most shallow of
three feet and the deepest part of the pool, although
not consistent, is about six-foot eight inches deep?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, that's right.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. And just so we're
not making assumptions, this is an in-ground pool?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: During your presentation,
you mentioned to the Board that so far the inquiries
you've had relative to the maximum number of people was
eight people interested in booking.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: No, no. Not eight
people. The largest booking was for eight people.

MS. BETH KERN: For a party of eight,
okay.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. I have had
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five legitimate inquiries that aren't people that I
already know.

MS. BETH KERN: And you also mentioned an
interest in wanting to partner with other community
members such as daycares or groups. What is your
proposal -- and I apologize if it's in here and I
haven't read it -- but what is your proposal for the
maximum number of people you are willing rent to at one
time?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So the reason -- so
my yard is pretty big. And I have seating throughout.
So not even considering the pool itself, I have 52
different seats. I have seats under the gazebo, seating
here. I made a little area with a park bench and seats
here. So it would comfortably accommodate quite a few
people. But I think that when I got my occupancy permit
when we were able to finally to use the pool once we got
the final permit, I think 25 was the max. But that's
just in the pool, not for the yard itself.

MS. BETH KERN: So understanding that,
though, what's your plan? If you're granted this
variance, what will be the maximum number that you're
going to say you're going to rent to in and out of the
pool on any given day?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So my plan is 25.
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But on the Swimply website, because they want you to get
more people looking, they want you to max out like what
you could do comfortably in your yard. But what I found
is nobody wants to rent that many, it just was to build
the algorithm. But my comfortable amount would be 25
people.

MS. BETH KERN: So you're planning not to
rent to groups of larger than 25?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: No, no. And not to
mention that just that many people, the wear and tear on
the yard and the amount of chemicals I would need in
order to be, stay clean is not worth it. It was just
something that I did.

So when you create your page on Swimply,
you just go in and you just add stuff. So when I put
25, I got this little blurb that said if you do more
people, more people will look at our pool. And I'm
like, well, I do want to get more interest, so that's
it. But we never had anybody inquire for more than like
eight. Like eight was the most I have gotten inquiries
for.

MS. BETH KERN: If you were to maintain
that marketing tool of posting that you can have 50
people but having an internal, your own policy that you

aren't going to rent to more than 25, do you as the
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owner of the property, do you have control to turn down
a rental for a group of larger than 257

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. But one of
the things, just based on what I learned from Swimply
and just trying to build the algorithm, so when you're
trying to build your algorithm you want as many eyes on
the property as possible. But what I found is that
there were no inquiries for larger amounts. And what I
would do if I was granted my variance, I would eliminate
the 50. I wouldn't even play that game and risk it. I
would just change it to 25 and keep it at that. Because
I was getting a lot of different emails from different
people and they were interested -- like one lady, she
wanted to have a birthday for her daughter,
six-year-old, and, you know, she had 1like 15 people
total. And so it wouldn't be worth it.

And then another thing that I did is that
when I did put 50 on there, I made it $200 an hour.
Nobody wants to rent the pool for $200 an hour. So it
was a huge deterrent in the first place. Swimply came
and they said, you know, that should be a hundred. And
I said huh-uh, 200.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. When people would
be there to rent your pool, what would they do if they

had to use the restroom facilities while they're there?
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MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So originally what
I was going to do is just have them come, because the
powder room is right off of my porch. But I looked into
a porta-potty rental and it was really inexpensive for
what it was. So I had some big parties for the 4th of
July coming up and I didn't want my friends and their
friends that I don't know just in and out of my house.

And I was like, you know something, I
switched it so originally when I did my Swimply page it
was, okay, this is what, you know, knock on the door and
you come in. But it was just cheaper and easier and
more hygienic to put a porta-potty. So porta-potties,
so Knaper's Porta-Potty rental is who I've used and the
porta-potty actually had a sink, it had a flusher and
they come every week to clean it and so that's why I --
and so where it would go?

MS. BETH KERN: Yes, where.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Every time I look
at this, the black and white -- I should have put my
glasses on. It probably would be better. So right
here --

MS. BETH KERN: Would this picture where
the pool actually --

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: -- would you prefer to
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use that picture?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, that is much
easier. Thank you, because it just -- so the way, when
I did rent a porta-potty for my own personal parties
because I had some parties for the 4th of July and it
was really fun.

And so right here is where I had it. And
so I have this little base that I had built for my
trashcans and so it went right over there with the
trashcans. So my neighbor on this side of me, he knew
about the porta-potty. And from the front of the house
because there's trees here on the front, you couldn't
see it.

MS. BETH KERN: So for the benefit of the
Board, you're referencing that the porta-potty was
oriented kind of in the corner of the front of your
fence --

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Um-hum.

MS. BETH KERN: -- near your house and
towards the property owner that is the business, not the
residence on that other side.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Exactly. And so,
in of the way it was, like my fence is so high, the only
thing you could see when it was in there is just the

very top of it and that's where it was. Once I realized
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that I would need to file for a variance as opposed to
just being able to get a business permit, I just had it
taken away. It didn't make sense to have it because I
wanted to make sure I was compliant in every way.

MS. BETH KERN: So if you were to have
the variance granted, your intention would be to bring
in a porta-potty during the season in which the pool is
open and that's the restroom facilities you would
provide to your renters?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. And one of
the things that I also offered to possible renters too
is that, if they wanted to, they could use the indoor
pool like older people and things 1like that. It was
more geared towards the younger people and children and
everything because it's just easier. But older people I
was offering the inside of my house. That was my
intention.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. I think you said
an indoor pool. I think you meant to say the indoor
restroom. Is that right?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, indoor
restroom. I'm sorry.

MS. BETH KERN: No, that's okay. I just
want it to be clear for the record so there's no

confusion about the public.
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MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: I'm sorry. I'm
sorry about that.

MS. BETH KERN: They might be wondering
about that, too.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, I don't know
if you can see me shaking in my boots, but I'm nervous.

MS. BETH KERN: That's okay. This isn't
intended to be scary. We just want to understand all
the facts so that the Board can make their decision
tonight. Okay?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Okay. And so and
then as far as this, this also shows you, so my driveway
fits four cars. And then this is my fence line. So
that whole front is also available for parking and all I
have to do is not park my cars in my driveway or in the
front.

MS. BETH KERN: Do you have a garage?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: And how many vehicles can
you store in your garage?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Two.

MS. BETH KERN: So you have an indoor
garage parking for two vehicles so that then you'd have
all four spaces available?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: I don't park my
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cars in the garage. After everything happened with my
husband, I was forced to empty out our storage units, so
my garages are filled. So right here you see this
parking here, so I made an arrangement with my neighbor
that whenever, if I were to have a rental, he allowed me
to park my cars over here, so those spaces right there.

MS. BETH KERN: So you're referencing the
business that's on the one side of you?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: 1Is he willing or have you
talked to him about allowing any renters to also use his
parking lot instead of encouraging them to park in the
business center?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Well, we wouldn't
use the business center because what I found out is that
even though I have a relationship with that business
center and I work there, it still is not something that
I could do. So I worked with him. 1It's better, he
feels more comfortable with me parking my vehicles there
as opposed to people, possibly guests. So to me, that
makes more sense where the property is for the guests,
my property is for the guests and so that's the
agreement we have, that I can park my vehicles there.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. So just for the

Board's clarity, you would be restricting parking and
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renters to only be allowed to park on your four-car
driveway --

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: And across the
front.

MS. BETH KERN: -- and the on-street
parking that is directly in front of your house?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Um-hum.

MS. BETH KERN: And you would not be
encouraging them to park at the shopping center at the
rear of your home?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: No, I would not, I
would not. Once I found out that -- so I was under the
impression that it was a public parking lot, as long as
there was no overnight parking, that you could just use
it and that would be really much more unobtrusive to my
neighbors. But I found out that I couldn't. And so I
made arrangements with my neighbor to mitigate that by
removing my vehicles from my property, parking in there
and it frees up anywhere from seven to eight cars,
depending on how big they are.

So just so you can get a better
understanding of how our agreement came about, I sold
him my husband's riding mower for a very cheap price.
And so we made a deal that at that discounted price I

sold it to him for, that I would be allowed to use that
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for no cost.

MS. BETH KERN: Do you have that
agreement formalized in writing or is it just an
informal --

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: TIt's verbal.

MS. BETH KERN: -- verbal agreement?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: TIt's verbal. The
only thing that I have is the receipt that I gave him
for the purchase of the mower.

MS. BETH KERN: I have been asking a lot
of the questions. I'm going to turn it over to the
Board to see if you have any questions of the Applicant
or the testimony she's provided thus far.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Do you want me to go
first? So you already answered some of these questions
about the parking at Kennies. I mean that's private
parking, so.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: And then you said
that Swimply pays for the insurance.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, they do. So
what happens is they take a percentage of what you make.
So they take 20 percent off the top and then whatever is
left is what you get. And then, of course, that money

would also be paying for the maintenance of the pool,
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electrical, gas because it is a gas-heated pool. It
gets expensive, the chemicals are expensive. And so
that's how it works.

So they, by them being the platform that
the rentals -- so the calendar is there, the booking is
there. So in order for people to even book the pool,
they have to put their personal information in. So you
get a much better qualified guest when you use Swimply.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Okay, but that's
just the person that's applying for it. That's not
everybody that they're bringing with them.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: They're not vetting
everyone that's coming, correct?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Well, the people
who rent are responsible for their guests. And so, and
Swimply covers $2 million worth of liability insurance
and that would be everything from property damage to,
God forbid, a fatality. But I'm always, I would always
be there. So I'd be babysitting everybody.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: And then you
mentioned an occupancy permit. Who was that with?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So that's just the
permit, that final permit that you can use your pool,

your own pool. It's not for a business. It was the
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permit for the whole pool, the whole pool building
process. And so it's a little, it just says that you
can use the pool and I believe it said 25 people in the
pool, but I don't have that document. I looked for it,
I couldn't find it.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: I think those were
my only questions.

MR. JOSHUA MOORE: My only question is
the maximum number of occupants in the pool, is that
documented?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: It should be with
the municipality. As far as I know, the zoning guy,
gosh, I forgot his name, he's an older guy and he came
for every step of the way and every piece of paper that
he had to file is filed somewhere within the
municipality.

MS. BETH KERN: Perhaps, Danielle, would
you be able to provide any testimony on behalf of the
Borough's records relative to the pool, the application
and permit for the pool at this property?

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: I don't have that
offhand. Scott Miller was actually on staff. I was not
here at the time that that went in. But what she's
talking about is the certificate of occupancy. That

actually gets signed off on by Commonwealth code. It
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may have been MDIA at that time. 1I'm not sure of which
company they were using. But that's basically just
saying that her pool has passed all of its inspections.
So I'll be honest, I don't know if it has how many
occupants can use it offhand.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. And just for the
benefit of record, can you raise your right hand and

I'll swear you in?

DANIELLE ROBINSON, was duly sworn, and

testified as follows:

MS. BETH KERN: And can you state your
first and your last name?

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: Danielle Robison.

MS. BETH KERN: And you're the Zoning
officer for the Borough of Spring Grove. 1Is that right?

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: Thank you. Is there
anyone here from the public who has any specific
questions for the Applicant that has not been covered?
Okay. A1l right. I see that there were two hands
raised. Could you please stand up, each of you, and
before you ask your question, can you state your name

and your address for the benefit of the stenographer.
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MS. MARY CHARISSE: My name is Mary
Charisse and I live at 303 Forge Court.

THE COURT REPORTER: And spell your last
name, please.

MS. MARY CHARISSE: C-H-A-R-I-S-S-E.

MS. BETH KERN: Go ahead with your
question, Mary.

MS. MARY CHARISSE: I have two questions.
One was the hours of operation and the other is would
you be using this as like, you know, a wedding
destination or for things other than just daytime pool
time?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So, thank you for
your question. So one of the things that I already had
decided is that from 10 to 8 would make most sense.

Most people, they don't want to swim at night, but I
just wanted to have it available just in case. And I
would be prepared to meet everyone as far as like if you
think that it should be earlier, it's something that we
easily can do.

So as far as a wedding venue, oh, that
would be awesome if it were, but I don't think -- people
would need way more guests than what my yard could
accommodate. So I don't think that it could be

feasible.
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And as far as I was saying about the
daycare, so every day the daycare, they walk past my
house and they turn around and then they go through the
guy's business parking lot next door and they circle
back out. And it's one of the other things that I
really was envisioning how fun would it be for these
kids during the summer to be able to walk to my yard
with their floaties and their licensed daycare providers
and have a swim day. And that's what I was envisioning
as far as -- we never got around to me answering that
question.

MS. MARY CHARISSE: Could you repeat the
hours of operation? What time in the morning to what
time at night?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So I was thinking
10 to 8, but I was also prepared to it being 10 to 7,
because the reason to 8 because during the summer, it
doesn't get dark until 9:30.

MS. MARY CHARISSE: And would alcohol be
allowed to be a part of that situation?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, I think so. I
mean it's something that doesn't have to be; but, yes.

MS. BETH KERN: All right. And now there
was someone on this side who has questions. Can you

please state your name and your address, please?



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

46

MS. BECKY STAUFFER: Hi, Nicole. I'm
Beclu Stauffer, S-T-A-U-F-F-E-R, 416 Monocacy Trail. I
live two doors down from Nicole across the street. So
there's a house in between your house and my house. My
question, actually, I think might be for you, Solicitor.
What happens if this variance is granted and Nicole
sells her house? Does the property remain a
commercially zoned business and that designation goes
with the property forever?

MS. BETH KERN: So under traditional
zoning laws, yes, when a variance is granted, it runs
with the land and it's attached to the land, not the
person.

However, under the Borough's zoning
ordinance and generally accepted parameters of the
Zoning Hearing Board, they can place what's considered
reasonable conditions on the grant of any variance,
which could include limiting the grant of the variance
specific to the property owner that is here before you
this evening to avoid it running with the land to a next
property owner. So that is a condition the Board could
consider in deciding whether or not to grant or deny the
variance.

MS. BECKY STAUFFER: So if Nicole were to

use the property with a variance for the Swimply
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purpose, would this variance then enable the property
owner to start a new business there since it's zoned
commercially?

MS. BETH KERN: Well, and to clarify, the
request is specifically for the commercial use that is
outdoor recreation. So it does not change the zoning of
the property. 1It's simply allowing a commercial type
use to take place at the property along with the primary
use, which is a residence and a residential use.

So it wouldn't be rezoning the property
to be commercial allowing or opening up the use, the
nature of the property to all other commercial uses that
are permitted under your zoning code. That's not the
application that's been presented to the Board. 1It's
specific to the outdoor recreation use which is
classified as a commercial type use.

MS. BECKY STAUFFER: Okay. Thank you for
that information.

MS. MARY CHARISSE: So is that
enforceable? So she's saying she was going to be closed
by 8:00 p.m. every night, and she's not, then who
enforces?

MS. BETH KERN: Well, additionally that
could be conditions that the Board considers here this

evening to specify operational hours as have been
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testified to by the Applicant, maximum number of renter,
party size for the rentals. Those could be conditions
that are placed on the approval and then upon there
being evidence that the property is being used outside
of those conditions, that becomes an enforcement matter
for the Borough and the Zoning Officer of the Borough to
enforce those conditions with the property owner.

MS. MARY CHARISSE: I certainly empathize
with your situation. If I was living next door, I would
be concerned about a party size of 25 people next door
to me on a regular basis. I wouldn't be happy with
that. I'm not your next door neighbor, but...

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: And that's totally
understandable. So that's the interesting thing.

That's one of the reasons I felt that I could do this is
because I'd be bordering on two size with business. The
business next door to me, I'm not obtrusive to it, in
fact he has seen some of the events that I have had for
myself because we are immediate neighbors.

On the other side of me, they travel a
lot during the summer, they do a lot of camping and
there's trees in between our properties as well as the
fence. And I would welcome anyone if there's something
that is uncomfortable or upsetting, please come to me

and I can fix anything and I'm prepared to work with the
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community. I want to provide a get-away for everybody
that is local and it's safe and it's hygienic and it's
beautiful. My yard is beautiful. And it would be such
a wonderful way to benefit from the expense that we went
into this with because with my husband being in a, I
mean literally in a coma and...

MS. MARY CHARISSE: And I think your
intention is admirable. I would ask if this variance is
granted to her, would then anybody else that decided,
okay, hey, this is a great idea, they would have to go
through the whole process all over? Does it set
precedence for other applicants?

MS. BETH KERN: That's right. Zoning
relief is unique to each property and the fact that it
has been granted for one property does not mean that it
can or will be granted for another property. It's up to
each applicant to come before the Board, present their
evidence and their testimony and their case about why
they believe that they meet the variance criteria.

MS. MARY CHARISSE: Thank you.

MS. BETH KERN: I saw a gentleman in the
back raise his hand.

MR. CHRIS STOREY: Chris Storey. I live
at 501 Monocacy Trail, it's adjacent to the property.

Throughout her speaking, couple of things came up. Now
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that she has publicly posted it, does she not have to
meet the ADA requirements? Plus, she said about the
daycare. Will you have a licensed lifeguard on duty?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: If I am --

MR. CHRIS STOREY: Not, if. Not if. It
has to be a yes.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: No. The only way
that would invest in a lifeguard is if they do want to
come there. I do have a licensed --

MR. CHRIS STOREY: You should have that
in place. Sorry.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Well, the good
thing about it is that by being private rentals, if I
did go commercial, which I'm not sure that I would --

MR. CHRIS STOREY: Technically, now that
you propose --

THE COURT REPORTER: Excuse me, could you
please speak one at a time?

MR. CHRIS STOREY: Sorry, I apologize.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: No, actually I
understand your concerns with that. But it's one of
those things that, you know how if you have a vision as
to how you would like it to be, the fact that -- so I
see that or my variance is approved, that's when I would

make those steps. My son lives with me. He's 21 years
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I would make him available for
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available all the
specific rentals
licensed lifeguard ever since he was

CHRIS STOREY: And does he get it

NICOLE MITCHELL: What?
CHRIS STOREY: Do you not have to get

SO many years?

NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, he does.
CHRIS STOREY: He does?
NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

CHRIS STOREY: And you have the

NICOLE MITCHELL: This is a question

that I was not prepared for because the lifeguard issue

would be -- so when you go to a lot of public pools

except for the really large ones like at hotels and

things like, that always have no lifeguard on duty sign,

which I do have posted in my yard.

It's posted

constantly, no lifeguard on duty.

But

come into my property,

if I were to have smaller children

I would make sure that I had

everything that I would need to make sure they are safe,

protected and then

I have an extra layer of protection
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through Swimply which provides a huge amount of
liability insurance.

MR. CHRIS STOREY: You brought up
alcohol.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Um-hum.

MR. CHRIS STOREY: 1Is it going to be cans
or glass bottles? So here involving the swimming pool,
what happens if glass breaks, gets in the pool? Cuts
the daycare kids.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Well, that's
something that one hundred percent no glass is allowed.
I have signs that actually, if you were to see my yard,
you'd see I have signs posted no glass, everything down
to no peeing in the pool. There are literally signs
that I had made that state no glass, no food, no drinks,
nothing near the pool. I do have areas where it would
be allowed, as well as smoking cigarettes, you know,
because people, that's what they do especially in our
area. But it would mostly be cans. No glass would be
allowed because it's too much damage to my equipment and
I can't afford that.

MR. CHRIS STOREY: Now what happens if a
fight breaks out?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: 1If a fight were to

break out, that's one of the things that I would be very
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comfortable with calling the police and our police
officer sits over there in the parking lot at the
library almost constantly.

MR. CHRIS STOREY: But he is not your --
at your beckon and call. He's not free. That is for
the community.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MR. CHRIS STOREY: So will you have a
person on duty and the reason I ask because the evening
my wife and I, she was out watering the flowers and I
can see your property and I can see and hear all night
long the car wash and I apologize for your situation,
but we all have things in our lives that happen to us.
But you bought the property knowing where it was behind
you. That's like buying a house next door to a sprint
car track and then asking them not to run sprint cars.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Oh, it's not that I
care about the noise. 1It's just that since there is
noise, I didn't think my noise would be obtrusive,
that's all.

MR. CHRIS STOREY: Well, that evening,
one of your renters was walking down because they were
fighting and she's MF'g the whole way to said parking
lot down by the car wash. So what will you do to

prevent that?
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MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So it was on the
back of my fence.

MR. CHRIS STOREY: No, no, she was on the
sidewalk.

MS. BETH KERN: Sir, sir, it sounds like
you're headed down a road that you're wanting to give
testimony to the Board.

MR. CHRIS STOREY: Yeah, I'm sorry. I
apologize. I just --

MS. BETH KERN: Do you desire to give
testimony to the Board?

MR. CHRIS STOREY: I can later, yeah, but
I thought her and I was just asking...

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: No, no, I'm
comfortable with the questioning. And that's one of
those things that, to be honest with you, that was not a
rental. That was my own personal family. So if my pool
were tied up with rentals from the area, my own crazy
family wouldn't be able to be there. And so, I know
exactly what you're talking about and that was my
family. That was not a rental. That was my family and
there was a family thing and that would be something
that I have the right to use my home privately for my
family, but the rental would be a much more structured,

much more structured use where it would be controlled.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

55

It would be considered where I would not
allow that to happen. I can't keep some of the personal
things from happening when I have my family and it gets
crazy. But my experience when people rent anything and
they have to put their banking information, their
personal information and all of that, they tend to be on
their best behavior and so that is what I'm looking
forward to. If I am allowed this variance that I would
rent to quality people and the question was put forth as
far as, yes, the renter is vetted, but what about their
guests. Well, they're responsible for their guests in
every way, shape or form. If anything were to happen,
they would be fully responsible as well as myself.

And I would take full responsibility of
making sure that, if this is granted, I won't allow my
family to come over. I won't allow these things that
are a cause of frustration within my own personal life
with them and their lack of understanding as to what I'm
going through.

It's very frustrating, but the rental
would give to me less frustration because trying to
figure out how to afford these extra expenses that I had
not accounted for with these school taxes, considering I
never had a school-aged child in any school here in

Pennsylvania, yet we have to pay these astronomical tax
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fees and that's the main reason I came up with this.

Because with my husband, I was forced to
retire him and he had been with the GSA for 15 years.

So they give you one percent per year which is 15
percent of his original income and so without that other
85 percent, it is a hardship. I can maintain my bills,
but I can't afford to pay these taxes here in Spring
Grove comfortably and I don't want that hardship on me.

And so my goal is next year I do plan to
work with the VA and try to get an exemption of some
sort. But from what I understand, they're not doing
those right now. They are not exempting Veterans and my
husband is a hundred percent disabled vet and his injury
is service related.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. I see another
gentleman. Do you have a question or would you like to
make a comment or testimony?

MR. BILL KESSLER: Well, actually I have
both.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay, well let's go ahead
with your question for now, please.

MR. BILL KESSLER: Okay, my name is Bill
Kessler. I live at 407 Monocacy Trail. I guess my
question might be to the Board, a clarification for me.

When you apply for a variance, don't you have to prove a
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hardship? I thought I heard that somewhere.

MS. BETH KERN: That is one of the
variance criteria that is outline in the Spring --

MR. BILL KESSLER: Well, what is the
hardship?

MS. BETH KERN: 1Is that your question to
the Applicant?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, so I'll tell
you so. My personal, what I did not want to do because
I knew this would be a public record, I didn't want to
have just anybody seeing what I'm going through with my
husband. So my husband, he had a near death experience
last summer. He has been in a coma ever since. I have
him in Tremont skilled nursing facility in Tremont,
Pennsylvania because with him being nonresponsive, he
can't walk, he can't talk, he barely opens his eyes, he
has a feeding tube and a trach in and the machinery that
they use to 1ift him in and out of bed, I have nowhere
in my house that he would probably just get bed sores if
he were home.

But I have him in a facility where
they're taking great care of him and I'm hoping with
every part of me that his brain does create new
synapsis. The amount of brain damage that he had from

being without oxygen, it caused him to have severe brain
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damage and brain damage does not reverse. But because
he is still living and his body is still functioning,
the brain will create new synapsis and I'm praying that
he comes home to me. But that's my hardship.

MR. BILL KESSLER: 1I'm so sorry for that.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: But that's my
hardship. And I did not put it in my application
because I knew it would be a public record and I really
didn't want everybody -- I only wanted the people who
came here today to know my truth and that's it.

MR. BILL KESSLER: Now my comment goes
back to the parking. Now if you're going to allow up to
25 people at that residence, there's no way you can park
that many cars.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: But I don't think a
lot of people come one person in a car.

MR. BILL KESSLER: Even if it's only two.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yeah, but, I can
comfortably fit seven or eight cars on the front of my
property.

MR. BILL KESSLER: There's just no way
you can do it. I mean, you're going down our street
now, the people that live there park on the street,
which I have no problem with because they live there.

You have two cars in your driveway and one on the
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street. So where are you going to put the people that
you're going to put in the pool?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So that's what I
worked out. So Mike Flemming next door, he and I made
an agreement that I can move my cars into his parking
lot to free up my four spaces in my driveway plus along
the front. And he also was comfortable with it being
additional cars to the corner.

MR. BILL KESSLER: What about the person
that comes to your house from out-of-state that's there
all the time?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: What are you
talking about, from Virginia?

MR. BILL KESSLER: Yes.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: That's my son. My
son works in Virginia and I had a property in Virginia.
That's my son and then my uncle comes, too. So what I
have because I'm by myself and my husband who's going
through what he's going through, that is why my son
moved back home with me. But he plans, he and his a
girlfriend have a place --

MR. BILL KESSLER: Four spaces ain't
going to cut it.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: But I have the

front of my house, too, is what I was saying. So the
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front of my house from fence to fence, I could fit at
least an additional four to five cars.

MR. BILL KESSLER: And my other problenm,
she was facing you people, I don't hear that well, but
this alcohol thing. How is that going to get
controlled? I mean I understand she's going to try. I
understand that. But let's face it, we all know what
happens.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: That's true. 1It's
true.

MR. BILL KESSLER: Then what? I mean
this is a residential area.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. And that is
one of the things, the only reason that I have even
tried to do this is simply because of the way my
property borders on two sides. My fence is high enough
where it's very private. If there was alcohol in my
yard, it would be isolated in my yard. I wouldn't --

MR. BILL KESSLER: Why can't you rent it
out without alcohol?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: I can do that. If
that's one of the requirements, so I'm fully prepared to
meet everybody in the middle because I'm fully prepared
to do that. That's something that I can't control. As

long as I put it on the Swimply website that it's not
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allowed, they'd know it's not allowed and it would be so
with that.

MR. BILL KESSLER: I understand that.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So that is as
simple as that. And so that's another reason that with
the 25, the only reason that I use that as the numbers,
because the average family they're coming maybe three or
even four to a car and if they know that the only
parking that's going to be available is going to be from
my property maybe to Mike's property and that's it. So
because by me creating my spaces just allows the guests
to be able to park in my driveway.

From what I have experienced the
inquiries that I've gotten, nobody really wants to rent
for the longer terms. Everything that has been a larger
party has been my own and it might be better off if I
was renting it to two or three people at a time. And so
that's it.

So, yeah, and I had two parties of my own
coming up. I had my nephew's graduation and then my
friend's birthday party and I canceled both because I
didn't want those to be construed as rentals. I didn't
want to take that chance. And so those were personal.

And another thing with the rentals,

because of the way I put the discounts in there, I don't
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get a lot of inquiries for weekends. I get weekday
inquiries. It's pretty interesting. But the weekends,
I usually block off my calendar for my own events, so,
because I have friends and family and everybody wants to
be at my pool. And I would much rather not be able to
have my only personal events and just rent it out to our
neighbors and people in our community. And it's not
like people from bad areas are going to be driving this
far to my pool.

It's going to be the same way, I don't
know if you've seen the Swimply website. They've got
tons of pools. We even got some in Spring Grove that
are on the website. So we got Spring Grove and York on
there. And there's different pools for different areas.
So this would be ideally for our own people because not
everybody has access to a pool. Not everybody wants
their children swimming at the public pool with
strangers while they have their kids out in bathing
suits and to be able to control that rental in a private
setting is pretty cool to be able to do because it's not
like it's going to be anybody but that family at any
given time. Only one family at a time. And the rentals
usually run, from the inquiries that I've gotten, three
hours is 1like the minimum. And so it would be isolated

to those people for that period of time.
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MS. BETH KERN: Okay. Ma'am, do you have
any other testimony that you'd like to give to the Board
this evening or does this conclude your case in chief?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Well, I didn't
necessarily have a lot of testimony. But I did have my
business plan and it discusses some of the questions
that they have asked me. And so it just, let me see if
there's anything in here that I had included and then...

MS. BETH KERN: Well, and you've asked
for this handout to be an exhibit and supplement to your
application. So what I'll ask you is, is everything
that you put in this exhibit consistent with your
testimony, your verbal testimony before the Board here
this evening and true and accurate to the best of your
knowledge?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. The only
other thing was, so there was an anonymous letter sent
to the municipality and it was presented to me when I
came to apply for my variance as though my property had
become a public nuisance.

So I took care of that and I talked to a
lawyer about what I could do because it would be false
because in order to be a public nuisance, it would have
to be a continuous of any type of behavior. So I did

include that letter, what I received at my home and then
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my categorical denial of false allegations and I also
was prepared to, if that were to come about today, I was
prepared to talk to that because one of the things that
I do know is that if there had ever been anything of any
seriousness at my property, the first thing people would
have done was call the police before coming here to the
Board, to the municipality.

And so because I received this at my
house, I did make sure, that one, I ceased and desisted
any potential even what could be considered a rental and
I also wrote and talked about the fact that this was
said about my property and it was offensive and I was
prepared to, if it did not cease as far as what was
presented to me that was said about my property, that I
was prepared to sue for defamation. And so that is
there.

But based on how everything is and that's
not something that had come up, it's not something that
I needed to discuss. But it is here and the
documentation is also here. The letter that was
received here at the Borough and at the municipality,
your own municipality, to me, once I received it, it
didn't match what I got at home from the municipality
because this didn't say that something crazy happened at

my property. It was just basic questions and they're
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very reasonable. These are questions that I would ask
as well. You know, so --

MS. BETH KERN: Can we just take a time
out for a second, because I think the documents speak
for themselves. They've been submitted.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: That's a letter dated
July 28th of 2025 that you're referencing that came from
the Borough. 1Is that right?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: And it was on my
house on the 30th.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. And that clearly
states in there that you had 20 days to appeal if you
didn't agree with the contents of that letter. 1Is that
right?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes. And so what I
did, so I came down here to get the appeal application
and I was informed that my variance hearing application
would serve as my appeal. However, I also sent an email
to preserve my rights on appeal and which I attached
these documents to that as well.

MS. BETH KERN: But when you submitted
your variance, you didn't indicate that you were also
appealing the Notice of Violation.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: No, because I
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didn't receive the Notice of Violation. So when I
submitted my variance application, I did it based on,
that was my original plan anyway. It just so happens
when I got here this type of information was verbally
told to me. And so then the next day, the paper was on
my house.

And so I came down here to talk about it
because I went online to get the appeals application and
I couldn't find it. So when I came and I talked to
Danielle, she told me that since I had already applied
for my variance, it would serve as my appeal
application. But I also sent her an email restating I
didn't know that the person on the paper was the same
person I talked to here. But I also sent her an email
stating my right to an appeal, the fact that I was told
that my variance application would serve as my appeal.
But I also to that email attached the documents that I
also gave six copies in person, two of each.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. Well, and I think
for the purposes of the Board, we haven't, the Board has
not been advised that you intend to appeal this Notice
Violation. So the intent of the application this
evening is to hear your variance.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: And I see Danielle has
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her hand raised. Do you have something for clarity?

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: Yes. So on her
door was a cease and desist. So she came, we explained
to her she cannot have that business. Pretty much gave
us the same spiel that she's given us here. So that's
where she applied for a variance because she wanted to
continue.

And then she did send an email talking
about an appeal but based on her verbiage, it was very
confusing. Myself as well as two of my colleagues and
our engineer looked at it because he's our ordinance
guru. And we actually went back to her to clarify if
she just wanted the attached documents included in the
hearing and not actually an appeal, but she did say,
that, yes, that is what she was seeking for these
documents to be given to them.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So I do recall that
when I came to file my application for an appeal based
on the letter, so I've also included the letter that I
received, and the letter was on my door the day after I
applied for my variance.

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: Right, the cease
and desist.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: So while this is

dated on the 28th, I was down here on the 29th and so



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

68

the cease and desist was the next day. But you had told
me verbally what was coming down the pike, which I was
aware of, and it was probably a week and a half, two
weeks, I think it was a few days before the 20th day
that I came in person and I asked you about the
application for the appeal and you told me that my
variance application would serve as the appeal. But
then I followed it up with an email.

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: Right. You're
appealing the fact that you can't have your business.
That's how it was interpreted to us.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: I brought this
letter with me that says that...

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: Right. And you
asked us to give it to the Board, which we did
distribute to them and that's why I sent an email
specifically asking for clarification.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: So I can forward
those emails to you as well.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Okay. And so when
I came for my appeal, I just didn't want my property to
be characterized in such a way unfairly and falsely.
And so when I came to ask about that, I thought that

this letter that says that you have the right to appeal
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this notice in order by filing a written application for
an appeal, when I came, I thought that you understood
that I had already had filed for the application for my
variance. But I was appealing this because this was
very upsetting to receive and that's when you said, oh,
it would serve as that and that's what I put in the
email.

But also concerning the letter that I
received at my home, I also brought this categorical
denial of false allegations of a public nuisance and I
brought you six copies in person and I attached them to
the email. So I do apologize if there was some
confusion. 1I've never done this before, but I thought
it was understood that I was not appealing, there was no
decision made about my appeal, so I mean about any
variance hearing, so that there was nothing to appeal
there. I had already applied.

So I thought it was understood that I was
appealing this horrible thing that was sent. And you
also told me that -- what did you say? You said, I'm
sorry that the term nuisance offended you. It was not
meant to demean. And so that's what I was appealing,
the term nuisance, because, one -- and I also kept in
that email there's never been a police to my home.

There's never been a neighbor knocking on my door and my



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

70

neighbors are the type of people that will knock on the
door. And so, this is very confusing for me because I
was not appealing my variance here because that wasn't
until September 18th, there's nothing to appeal. It was
just an application. I was appealing this letter
complaint and you told me, oh, that was the only thing I
could put down. That was the code I had to put down and
sorry that the term nuisance offended you and you put
that in the email as well. So I do apologize for the
confusion.

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: I did explain the
reason why we sent you something because of the amount
of calls, people coming in, the letter that we received
that warranted based off our ordinance, which is why
specifically it's called out as a nuisance.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: And so what I've
also included in there is the letter that, I asked her
for a copy and I also asked her so how many people. So
five people, I don't know that that makes a nuisance,
but she told me, oh, you know, because when I did come
back and I realized that I wanted to get the application
to appeal this letter that I received, that was very
offensive for knowing that I hadn't done anything like
that. And that I know that if something wrong had

happened at my house, the first thing would have



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

71

happened is the police would have been called. It would
have been brought to my attendance.

And even an isolated incident of a
discrepancy of somebody on the sidewalk or whatever the
case is, one time does not make a nuisance. And so I
was responding to the letter that I received. So all of
that is in here.

So right behind where I have with the
purple tab, it says character statements. So the first
statement is from my neighbor who owns the business next
door who was aware of what I planned to do. And he said
that once I did become a legal entity, we would discuss
the possibility of collaborating properties as far as
he'll use my property for his business as far as being
able to rent it for his patients. So that's the letter
from him.

The next letter is the letter that I
asked her, I said if, you're saying if I get a letter on
my house saying that there's a nuisance, what type of
complaints? So she said most of them were phone calls.
One person came in. It sounds like about five people.
And this letter, this anonymous letter came. So on the
next page is the anonymous letter. To me, this is not a
complaint of a nuisance. This is normal can she do

this? 1Is this legal? What about alcohol? What about



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

72

this? And so that was what I have here.

So then I also have attached the letter
that I received on my door on July 30th. So it was
attached to my door on July 30th, the day after I filed
for my appeal, not my appeal for my variance hearing,
and I paid the money and put the application in. And so
once I saw this, that's when I talked to my uncle who's
a lawyer and he helped me prepare this. And I dropped
this off because I was responding only to this.

My variation (sic) hearing was down the
pike. I was responding to this letter that came to my
home that verbally she had told me something, but to see
it in paper, it was very disturbing to be honest. And
so that's why the last part is what I've written
concerning that letter that I received from them that
says that I have a right to appeal this notice. So the
appeal in my mind was for this only not anything to do
with my variance.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. Do you have any
other testimony or does the Board have any additional
gquestions for the Applicant?

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: So you said that
there's several Swimply pools in Spring Grove.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Um-hum. Well, it's

like two in Spring Grove, but just the York area itself
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and then Mechanicsburg. So in our area there's several.
It's all different ones.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: But those two aren't
in Spring Grove Borough.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: There's at least
one. No, there's two in Spring Grove when I looked on
it. There were two in Spring Grove.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Not the Borough.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: But not our part of
Spring Grove.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Okay. Because you
would have to, I'm just guessing, I guess if I had
something that I wanted to rent out, you would have to
go to the Borough before you even thought about doing
that to get permission to do it. Am I right about that?

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: Yes, you would
have to make sure it's zoned. And then, for example, we
had a barbershop go in. He had to apply for a permit
and it had to be inspected for safety and they had to
issue an actual certificate of use saying that it was
okay.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: And I mean --

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: And that's the
significance of what I was doing. So I didn't want to

make that commitment with the financial situation being
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what it is. And so what I did is I tried to create my
algorithm. I got my own family to use Swimply and I
blocked off the calendar for when they wanted to. It
was once I decided that, you know something, I'm going
to make it a business and that's when I came down here,
because I did do my preliminary research and for one I
saw two pools in Spring Grove. So that was one week
before I even put my pool on Swimply.

And so that was one thing and then when I
did the research and I looked at all the code, there was
a business allowed that was an outdoor recreational
facility and it had a pool that was allowed. I did not
realize that that wasn't for us.

And for me, my using the Swimply in order
to build the algorithm so that I can actually make money
once I made that commitment for the business, my pool
didn't open until June 20th. And so throughout June --
and that's the thing. I never even had the opportunity
to use it. Because you know how much bad weather we had
in June and July. There was no opportunity, it was
cold. And so it was the 4th of July, so there weren't
any real opportunities to even try to rent it and that's
why so much time had went by. Because I gave myself 30
days to see if I could get an interest and then my plan

was to come to here and get my permit.
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So I was aware that I needed to do that.
But I didn't think that it would beat me down here, that
all of this would beat me down here and I did make the
mistake of sharing my intentions with someone.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Well, I guess I
understand that and I'm really sorry for your husband's
situation and stuff like that. But I guess if I was
going to do something, because I've had several
businesses throughout my life, too, and I guess the
first thing I would probably do is go to the Borough and
see if it's okay here. And I know you said there's two
other, but there's addresses that are Spring Grove that
are outside of this Borough.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: That's what I found
out. And so that's one of the things that -- I wasn't
even, I didn't want to do that full leg work as far as
that commitment or anything until I knew that's what I
was going to do and I didn't know anything about
Swimply. I didn't know how it worked. I didn't know
anything.

And so to be on the safe side, I used it
for my own personal things. And so everybody on there,
with the exception of the lady who she had two people, I
said two people can't hurt. And she wanted two, I think

she did two hours and I was like, you know something, I
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need to make this a business. I was very enthusiastic.
I was excited and I shared with, I shared that this is
what I wanted to do. And my neighbor didn't seem like
it was too much of a problem.

So my plan was to come on the following
week, which I did. And when I got here, this is some of
the stuff that I ran into. And so I paid the money so
that I could get my variance hearing. And once I
learned that even though Spring Grove does allow it, I
didn't know Spring Grove is small as it is had different
zones. I just thought that if they could do it, I could
do it. And once I learned, that's why I paid the money
so that I could at least try to get the variance and be
allowed. The difference with my property being bordered
by commercial on two sides does make me a little
different than the other houses in our neighborhood.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Well, another thing
I want to say -- what is the guy on the corner now?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Mike Flemming.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Yes. So that used
to be residential. I don't know if you're aware of
that. And it would probably be able to be moved back to
residential if somebody wanted to buy it. And as far as
your neighbor on the other side, I know they're okay

with you. They're gone all summer. But what if they're
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not? What if they sell their house and somebody else
moves in and they're not happy about it? So then we
got, you know, right off the bat --

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: You know something,
I've had that experience. So when we first bought our
house, we didn't know that was a business. We did not
know that was a business. We found out through the lady
who used to live across the street named Pam that it was
a business. And we were like, oh, my gosh. So we
didn't really care because it was nothing that affected
us, not truly. But what we did is we put a fence up so
that we could be private from that business. But we did
not know.

One of the things, this is something
that's isolated to myself and the fact that I don't plan
to go anywhere. They're going to have to drag me out of
there dead before I go anywhere because we're leaving it
to our children. And it's not that I can't afford our
mortgage. I can afford everything because of the income
that I do have coming in. I can't afford taxes. I can
afford my property taxes that are coming out of my
mortgage. I can't afford these school taxes. They're
way too much.

And so I got, I even came down here to

see if there was some way. I went to the VA to try to
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get, you know, help with it and there was nothing. And
the pool thing, I just was talking to a friend, they
said, have you ever heard about Swimply? And I was
like, no. So I said that would probably do it. That
would give me what I need to make that extra little
income. And so for me being able to afford my taxes and
potentially provide more tax revenue for the Borough in
addition to me being able to comfortably pay my taxes
would be a benefit.

So concerning, one, no plan to sell. We
don't plan to lose it. We don't plan to go into
foreclosure. I have no intention of any of that. And
so that is moot point. And then once I die, we already
have in the will that it's going to be split between our
four children.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Well, I was asking
about the neighbors on either side if they sell. If
it's no longer a business anymore, if it goes back to
residential and then, you know. ..

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Well, I'm not sure
how that would work. Because the guy who's there now is
not the guy, was not the business that was there when I
first bought it. 1It's a second business. So I don't
know that it would go residential. But I don't know how

that -- I know he doesn't plan on stopping any time
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soon. In fact, he also does the Dallastown athletics
care. And so it's one of the things that he had shared
with me is that he's about to stop doing that because he
wants to really devote more of his time for his personal
business.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay, does that conclude
your case in chief to the Board this evening?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Um-hum. And I
brought that up to you because I did include that in
here just to be on the safe side as far as I want to be
totally transparent as far as what my experience was,
everything that happened, what I received and my
response to that. And also the fact that what I propose
is something that's simple and it's something that would
benefit our community and it would be awesome if those
kids had a safe place to swim during the summer. And it
would be isolated to whatever the limitations are from
the Board. If they only want me to rent hours from 10
to whenever or limit myself to every other weekend,
things like that, I would easily do it because I'm very
comfortable with that. Because I feel that even with
those limitations I would be able to bring in additional
income into my family and into my home that I don't have
and that I need.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. And not to sound
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like a broken record, I'm just looking for a yes or a
no. Does this conclude your case in chief in front of
the Board --

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: It does. I'm
sorry.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: You have somebody
else that's wanting to testify.

MS. BETH KERN: Do you have a question,
comment or testimony?

AUDIENCE MEMBER: A comment. So I don't
know if now is the time.

MS. BETH KERN: I think at this point we
were going to open it up just to see if anyone has since
changed their mind and would like to provide any
testimony to the Board in opposition of the application,
which would be providing facts for consideration as
opposed to comments relative to concerns based on the
application that you've heard this evening. If that
helps kind of alleviate the difference between testimony
and comment. Ma'am?

MS. BECKY STAUFFER: 1I'm Becky Stauffer.
Nicole, I want to be transparent with you and I do need

you to swear me in for this.
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BECKY STAUFFER, being duly sworn,

testified as follows:

MS. BECKY STAUFFER: I think your
property is stunning. I love what you've done with the
property. I can hear your music from my back yard. I
love my own home sanctuary and I respect that your home
is your sanctuary. But I can hear the music. It does
concern me a lot to have people who are not vetted
coming into the neighborhood for the safety of my own
children. So my preference would be that we not add
another commercial business to our street. And I just
want you to hear that from me. I just want to be
transparent with you about where I'm coming from.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Thank you. I
respect that and I fully understand that.

MS. BETH KERN: 1Is there anyone else that
would like to offer testimony?

AUDIENCE MEMBER: Is testimony different
from a comment?

MS. BETH KERN: Testimony is different
from a comment. So, for example, Becky just indicated
that she wanted the Board to understand that she can
hear the music and that she has concerns relative to

additional folks coming into the neighborhood.
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MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: I will be playing
my music in my private property though, even if I don't
get my variance. So I do apologize. So, I'm sorry. It
hasn't been rentals. The music hasn't been rentals.
It's just been me. So it's shocking that -- I can't
hear it from the front of my house, my own house. But
hearing it over there, I understand and I will be
considerate and make sure I don't play the music as
loud. And it's not even that loud. But, okay, I do
understand.

MS. BECKY STAUFFER: 1It's good music. I
can hear it.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: TI'1ll be
considerate. Thank you. But, yes, I will be
considerate and I will play my music, but I will be
considerate of the volume.

MS. BETH KERN: So we're going to move
into comments now and for the benefit of the Applicant,
this is now the time for the public just to make
comments not necessarily for response to those comments.
We will give you on opportunity if you'd like to
respond. But at this point in time, we're going to see
if anyone who's here has comments they'd like to make to
the Board and then we will offer you an opportunity to

make any response to those comments.
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MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: 1Is it better if I
sit for the comments?

MS. BETH KERN: That is fine. Thank you.
Okay. Do we have any comments?

MS. BEVERLY BRUNNER: Hi. My name is
Beverly Brunner and I live at 414 Monocacy Trail. Just
my own personal opinion here. We moved in in 2011 in a
residential neighborhood. Kennie's Shopping Plaza is
behind us. As far as the car wash noise, we hear that
at our house in addition to the constant noise from
Kennie's because they load and unload and all the rest
of the businesses in the back.

We too have heard music coming from the
Mitchell residence and we do have a pool ourselves. Our
yard is also our sanctuary. And we bought our house to
live in a residential neighborhood. My concern is that
if it's granted that it can be used as commercial that
if she does sell, you know, the commercial businesses
are basically moving down the street towards our house
and that's a concern.

I'm also concerned, I don't think parking
for that many people is feasible there. 1I'm not sure
why, as far as bathroom facilities, I don't agree with a
porta-potty being put in a residential neighborhood

regardless if it's maintained. As a neighbor on either
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side, I would not want my neighbors to have a
porta-potty.

I'm also hearing that a lot of
conversation was done with Mr. Fleming who already owns
a business, but I kind of feel like there's no
consideration to the surrounding neighbors as far as
noise. I mean the original application, or I'm not sure
what the word is, the presentation that was put on the
application about she could rent part of the house out,
which also concerns me with them becoming an Airbnb.
There's a lot of questions I have about that. So I'm
really opposed to the situation and I just wanted my
feelings heard. 1I've never met you and it's nothing
personal.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: I fully understand.

MS. BEVERLY BRUNNER: My other kind of
just a thought, you're saying the school taxes are
$6,000. But I'm not seeing how the three months, four
months of swim time -- and I'm just saying that I saw it
was like $30 an hour -- I'm not sure how that is going
to solve the issue of the school taxes.

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: 1It's not going to
solve it, but what it will do is help me. Because
there's no way that I can make that much in the

summertime and that's one of the things, too.
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MS. BETH KERN: Okay, and I'm sorry to
cut you off. I want to keep this purely to public
comment now. And if you'd like to address any of the
comments made, we'll give you that opportunity at the
end. Okay? Just so we can keep the process moving
forward and be orderly. Okay?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes.

MS. BETH KERN: Are there any other
comments? Any other persons that would like to make
comments? Yes, ma'am.

MS. BARBARA HALL: My name is Barbara
Hall. I 1live at 518 Monocacy Trail. So I'm not close
to this, but I'm on the same street.

Over 20 years ago I moved here because
it's a very nice residential neighborhood. The business
that is being discussed does not belong in a residential
area. Spring Grove has a commercial zone and it does
not have to encroach on a residential street.

A business needs parking spaces. Not
available on a residential street. There are children
who live and play in this neighborhood and business
traffic would create a safety hazard for children. This
street is not suited for business traffic. It would not
strengthen neighborhood bonds. If anything, it would

weaken them.
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Spring Grove has provided safer parks in
the community for gatherings. I do not want any
business in this development. This proposal is not a
welcome retreat. It is more of a safety hazard.
Turquoise Oasis has a place, but that place is in the
Caribbean, not Monocacy Trail. For over 20 years this
neighborhood has been my home. Please don't destroy my
home. Thank you.

MS. BETH KERN: Any other comments? Yes,
sir.

MR. PETER LOMBARDI: Pete Lombardi. 406
Monocacy. I do agree with one thing, the taxes are too
high. But you knew that when you bought the house and
then you added a pool, so...

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Well, I didn't
expect my husband to be in a coma. I swear, I didn't.
This was not my intention to do anything because I
just -- I'm sorry for responding.

MR. PETER LOMBARDI: I request that you
vote no.

MS. BETH KERN: Are there any other
comments? Yes, sir.

MR. PHILLIP KLOCEK: Phillip Klocek,
K-L-0-C-E-K. 411 Monocacy Trail. One thing that comes

to mind is trash for a business other than a
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residential. I see a lot of my neighbors when I'm out
in the neighborhood on Friday, it's just their family
and their trashcans are overflowing. If you're going to
bring in people, up to 25 people in a day and creating
trash, you know, what would be the plan to do that and
that would be an extra burden to the Borough for trash
removal if they overfill their one tote that we're
allowed to do. So that's my comment I thought about the
project.

MS. BETH KERN: Are there any other
comments?

MR. CHRIS STOREY: I would like to make
another comment. Chris Storey. She was talking about
the taxes. We all knew when we bought our homes what
the taxes are. Yeah, they're pretty high. But I pay my
taxes like everybody else. When I come home, I work in
an auto body it's not all day. I would like it quiet.
It's a quiet neighborhood. 1It's peaceful. I pay those
taxes for that reason. I grew up around the City of
Pittsburgh when I was younger, it was loud. I'm paying
these for a residential home and everything. I would
like you to vote no. Sorry. Thank you.

MS. BETH KERN: Just making sure nobody
else has any other comment.

Okay. A1l right. Nicole, we promised
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that we would offer you an opportunity if you'd like to
respond to any of the comments. So before we close and
the Board goes into making their decision, would you
like to respond to any of the comments that were
addressed?

MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Yes, I would. I
really would. So I'm going to try to -- I should have
taken notes, but I can remember everything. So
concerning trash, it's just my son and I. We don't
produce a lot of trash. I don't perceive that being
even a factor.

When it comes to the taxes, yes, I
understood there were property taxes, but my husband was
a primary breadwinner which he does not have that income
because he is in this health condition that he is. And
so I did not know the taxes were that much. I have my
own property in Virginia that I pay taxes on. I did not
pay the property taxes here.

Since my husband has been in this state
and I got the tax bill, I'm just now realizing and
that's why I'm so late not paying the taxes up until now
because I was trying to get all of my finances in order.
I did not know they were this high and this was just an
idea of a way to offset it. And I had a lot of people

always asking me about my pool and is it heated and I
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just assumed that a lot of people were interested and
wanted to use my pool and that's where the idea was born
from.

As far as noise and everything, I don't
see that my yard would cause more noise than what we get
from the shopping center and that's the difference
between my property and the rest of the residents there.
My property is an isolated property with a business on
one side and a business on the back.

And it's interesting because not even the
business next to me has business on two sides. And so
that's it. When it comes to that, I definitely, if I
were allowed to have my variance, and I hear everybody's
concerns, if I were allowed to have my variance, I would
definitely make sure that there was nothing that
happened that they would have to complain or call the
police or anything for. And I don't plan to have some
outside element in my yard. I plan to have a very safe
community have the enjoyment of the yard. Kids birthday
parties, day camps, just getaways for people who just
want a private romantic setting, and that's all. And I
was just using this as a possibility because it was an
initial investment that we could afford. We were very
comfortable. But when you make these plans and you know

God's plans are what they are. Had no intention that
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what my 1ife would be in such turmoil like it has been.
I'm coming up on a year now since my husband fell ill
and he's not improving, which I had hoped he would.

And so what I'm working with is trying to
scramble to figure out a way to make sure that I don't
only just pay my bills, I can pay for this. Because if
I would have had any inkling this was going to happen to
my husband, the money from when I sold my house in
Virginia would not be in that pool right now. That
would be a back yard with no pool. And that's hindsight
being what it is. 1It's nothing I can do to get that
money back. Now that I have to take care of my
husband's finances, his car notes, the things that I
didn't -- I didn't even know how much his car note was.
I had one car and my car is paid for -- his car notes, I
had to get -- it's just a lot and I do apologize to
everyone for even trying to have this and I would
promise that I wouldn't do anything to hurt our
community. I love our community. I love our homes.

But my house is different from everybody else's. I am
bordered on two sides and that shopping center. I don't
even have a tree buffer. So whatever you can hear in
your yards, I can hear it ten times higher without my
tree buffer. And I don't complain about that. I

understood.
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Did not know the next door neighbor was a
business when I bought the house, they did not tell me
that. But that noise, I would not increase noise and my
music is just my music. I don't play my music after
late. I mostly play it during the day. And if you can
hear my music, I have these two little rock speakers
that are shaped like rocks so they don't, they are not
that loud. And it's not like we would have DJs or
something that would really be loud. And the music that
I hear behind my house at midnight, one in the morning,
two in the morning as I sit out there a lot now because
I'm home alone and I cannot sleep. I'm shocked by just
how noisy it still is those times of night. My property
would never do that.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. Does the Board
have a desire to go into executive session to ask any
legal questions relative to the application and the
presentation that you've heard from the Applicant this
evening and the testimony or are you prepared to
deliberate and make your decision?

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: I think we'd 1like to
have a couple minutes with you.

MS. BETH KERN: Okay. All right. So we
are going to go into a recess and have an executive

session for the purpose of the Board to be able to ask
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legal questions of the solicitor.

MS. DANIELLE ROBISON: Do I join you?

MS. BETH KERN: No, not usually. Does
the Board need a contribution to the executive session?

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Can we just go in
and then if we have any questions, we can pull her in?

MS. BETH KERN: Yes, we can.

(Executive session held from 7:51 p.m.

until 8:10 p.m.)

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: 1Is there a motion
for this application?

MR. JOSHUA MOORE: I make a motion that
we deny the application.

MR. JARROD MARTIN: 1I'll second the
motion.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Any discussion?

(No discussion)

MS. BETH KERN: You want to call for the
vote. All those in favor.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: All those in favor?

MR. JOSHUA MOORE: Aye.

MR. JARROD MARTIN: Aye.

MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: Aye. Those opposed?

(No response.)

MS. BETH KERN: And now the adjournment.
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1 MS. KRISTYN STOUCH: We are going to

2 adjourn the meeting.

3 MS. NICOLE MITCHELL: Thank you for your
4 time.

5 (The meeting concluded at 8:10 p.m.)
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